LICENSING COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 13 July 2022

Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Committee held at Committee Room - 2nd Floor West Wing, Guildhall on Wednesday, 13 July 2022 at 1.45 pm

Present

Members:

James Tumbridge (Chairman) Sophie Anne Fernandes (Deputy Chairman) Brendan Barns Deputy Peter Dunphy Mary Durcan Deputy John Fletcher Deputy Marianne Fredericks Deputy Shravan Joshi David Sales

Officers:

Chloe Ainsworth	 Town Clerk's Department
Andrew Buckingham	 Town Clerk's Department
Peter Davenport	 Environment Department
Frank Marchione	 Comptroller & City Solicitor's Department
Jenny Pitcairn	 Chamberlain's Department
Rachel Pye	 Environment Department
Gavin Stedman	 Environment Department

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Andrew Fitzpatrick, Graham Packham and Jason Pritchard.

The Committee noted that Martha Greckos had stepped down from the Committee and the Chair thanked her for her service.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

There were no declarations.

3. PUBLIC MINUTES

RESOLVED – That the public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 23 May 2022 be approved as a correct record.

4. MINUTES OF LICENSING (HEARING) SUB-COMMITTEES

4.1 **Gopuff, 18 May 2022**

The Committee noted the public minutes of the licensing hearing in respect of the premises Gopuff, 171-176 Aldersgate Street, Barbican, EC1A 4HT.

The Deputy Chairman informed the Committee that Gopuff had subsequently decided not to take up the licences in the above premises.

The Comptroller & City Solicitor confirmed that there had been no appeals.

5. DELEGATED DECISIONS OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ENVIRONMENT PERTAINING TO PREMISES' LICENCES

The Committee received a report of the Executive Director Environment detailing the premises licences, and variations to premises licences, granted under the Licensing Act 2003 and administered by the Licensing Service from 1 April 2022 to 30 June 2022.

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

6. CONTINUED SUPPORT OF THE CITY HOSPITALITY SECTOR: AL FRESCO EATING AND DRINKING - BUSINESS AND PLANNING ACT EXTENSION 2022

The Committee received a report of the Director of Markets and Consumer Protection providing a summary of pavement licences currently granted and outlining proposals for the continuation of pavement licence application process until 30 September 2023.

The Chair expressed his gratitude to the Chair and Deputy Chair of the Planning and Transportation Committee, as well as the Deputy Chair of the Licensing Committee, for opening communications between the two committees.

A Member queried how the Licensing Committee and the Planning and Transportation Committee were going to engage stakeholders in the extension of the pavement licence regulations going forward. Members were informed that there had not been sufficient time to hold a public consultation but were reminded that there is a consultation period for each pavement licence application, during which the statutory consultees and the public can raise any concerns about individual applications with the City Corporation's Licensing Team. These concerns are then considered in the decision to refuse, grant or amend the application. Members were also informed that once the Levelling Up Bill has been passed in parliament, Officers will develop a permanent pavement licence policy and will consult with local stakeholders as part of this process.

A Member stated that the Committee should not underestimate the effect that the current pavement licence regulations have had in attracting visitors into the City of London and that there has been a noticeable increase in customers utilising outdoor seating within his ward between 11am and 3pm.

The Chair of the Planning and Transportation Committee stated that at the meeting he had with the Chair and Deputy Chair of the Licensing Committee, they discussed ensuring that planning and licensing applications are moving in tandem with each other. He stated that this process should involve consultation

with all stakeholders, including residents. This view was endorsed by the Chair the Licensing Committee.

The Deputy Chair stated City of London residents were concerned by pavement licences granted for the later hours due to noise disturbance. She stated that the Committee will not understand the level of this concern until consultations with residents take place.

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

7. POLICE LICENSING REPORT

The Committee received a report of the Commissioner of the City of London Police providing an update on crime committed which were linked to licensed premises between May and June 2022.

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

7.1 **Operation Reframe Briefing**

The Committee received a report of the Commissioner of the City of London Police updating the Committee on Operation Reframe, which took place on 30 June 2022. The operation involved asking partners to assist the police in providing a reassuring high visibility presence, with the goal of making people feel safe in the City of London. Members were informed that the London Fire Brigade joined the operation.

A Member stated that she was pleased that joint operations were taking place once again following the pause during the Covid-19 pandemic.

The Deputy Chair queried if the police had identified a reason for the increase in offences in hotels. Members received an update on the training that hotels have received and were informed that Operation Make Safe will be restarting.

A Member stated there are a number of new student residences within the City and that this will bring with it a new demographic with a different behaviour pattern.

The Chair informed the Committee that he has asked that the City of London Police Authority Board and the Licensing Committee are kept suitably informed about the progress of Destination City plans going forward.

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

8. **REVENUE OUTTURN REPORT 2021-22**

The Committee received a joint report of the Chamberlain and Executive Director Environment comparing the revenue outturn for the services overseen by the Licensing Committee in 2021/22 with the final budget for the year.

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

9. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There were no questions.

10. **ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT** There were no urgent items.

11. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

12. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

RESOLVED – That the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 23 May 2022 be approved as a correct record.

13. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

A question was received regarding the assistance the City Corporation provides to licence applicants.

14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

The following items of urgent business were raised:

a) An update on a group squatting and promoting an unlicensed music event in the City.

The meeting ended at 2.15 pm

Chairman

Contact Officer: Chloe Ainsworth Chloe.Ainsworth@cityoflondon.gov.uk